City of Naples

Naples City Council Meeting Agenda
February 26, 2026 - 7:30 p.m.

1420 East 2850 South

Naples, UT 84078

Opening Ceremonies

Approval of Agenda

Approval of Minutes - February 12, 2026 Regular Council Meeting

Any Follow Up Matters from February 12, 2026

Approval of the Bills

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD

Request for Sponsorship - Uintah Basin Junior Livestock - Cindy Birchell

Approve Ordinance 26-263 - Adopting Utah Wildland Urban Interface Code and Map
Approve Ordinance 26-264 - Purchasing Policy Update

0 0 N oo s

Approval to Surplus Road Department Items - Ryan Cook

=
©

Motion to Approve or Deny Pickleball Courts at Naples Park

=
=

Other Matters or Future Council Matters

=
b

Motion to Adjourn

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals needing special accommodations during this meeting should notify
the Naples City offices at 789-9090, 1420 East 2850 South, Naples, UT 84078 at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting. Meetings
are held at 1420 East 2850 South, Naples, UT.

The undersigned, duly appointed City Recorder, does hereby certify that the above agenda was posted at the Naples City Office, on
the City’s website https:/naplescityut.gov/ and on the State Public Meeting Notice website htts://utah.gov/pmn Nikki W. Kay




Naples City Council
February 12, 2026

Minutes

A meeting of the Naples City Council was held February 12,
2026, 7:30 p.m., at the Naples City Office, 1420 East 2850
South, Naples, Uintah County, Utah.

Council members attending were Brock Arnold, Nate Zilles,
Dan Olsen, Ross Morton, Kenneth Reynolds and Jonathan
Beede.

Others attending were Guy Collett, Greg Olsen, Nancy Olsen,
Kelcie Olsen, Braden Olsen, Mason Holmes, Lauren Holmes,
Cody Evans, Becky Evans, Cheryl Meier, Jolene Baker, Dean
Baker, Jackson Beede, Brooks Jones, Keith Sprouse, Jordan
Thompson, Benjamin Anderson, Szeth Simmons, Ryan Cook
and Micheal Davis.

Mayor Arnold welcomed everyone and asked Councilman
Morton to lead the pledge of allegiance and Councilman
Reynolds to offer the invocation.

Mayor Arnold asked for approval of the agenda. Kenneth
Reynolds moved to approve the agenda. Dan Olsen
seconded the motion. The motion passed with all in
attendance voting aye.

The minutes of the city council meeting of January 22, 2026
were presented for approval. Dan Olsen moved to approve
the minutes of January 22, 2026. Ross Morton seconded
the motion. The motion passed with all in attendance voting
aye.

Mayor Arnold asked if anyone had anything they would like
to follow up with from the previous meeting. Nothing was
brought forward.

Mayor Arnold asked if anyone had any questions about the
bills. The bills presented were in the amount of $82,480.34.
Kenneth Reynolds moved to approve the bills. Nate Zilles
seconded the motion. The motion passed with the following
roll call vote:

Page 1 of 13 February 12, 2026

DATE, TIME & PLACE OF
MEETING

COUNCIL MEMBERS
ATTENDING

OTHERS ATTENDING

" OPENING CEREMONY

APPROVAL OF THE
AGENDA

MINUTES APPROVED

FOLLOW UP MATTERS

APPROVAL OF THE BILLS




Nate Zilles Aye

Dan Olsen Aye

Ross Morton Aye

Kenneth Reynolds  Aye

Jonathan Beede Aye
Mayor Arnold stated that they have added a new item to the PUBLIC COMMENT
agenda. He said according to Utah Open and Public Meetings PERIOD

Act they can have room for public comment, but there needs
to be order to that. He said people can speak to what is on
the agenda or anything that might not be on the agenda.
Mayor Arnold said the time for each person’s comments will
be three minutes. He said it will not be a discussion but
people can voice their comments, concerns, or something
they feel the Council might need to look into. Mayor Arnold
said anyone can share during that public comment period
but when it’s over he asked for respect and decorum during
the rest of the meeting. Mayor Arnold asked for a motion to
go into a public comment period. Nate Zilles moved to go
into a public comment period. Dan Olsen seconded the
motion. The motion passed with all voting aye.

Dean Baker said that many at the meeting were interested
in the discussion for pickleball courts and he wanted to wait
until after that discussion because he didn’t know what was
going to be said. Mayor Arnold said they are going to have
a presentation later on the agenda for pickleball courts. Dean
Baker asked if they could move their comments to after the
presentation because they didn't know what was going to
come up in the discussion. Mayor Arnold said that is not
normally how an open meeting works. He said they would be
willing to hear any comments for or against the item and
will take those into consideration during that discussion. Mr.
Baker said he is not against pickleball courts but he is
concerned about losing grass, softball fields, and lights on
them at night.

Greg Olsen said he also has some of the same concerns as
Mr. Baker. He said he leases out the turf farm three days a
week for baseball and when he goes he sees maybe one or
two people playing pickleball. He said what he has never
seen are the pickleball courts full but what he has seen is the
grass area at Naples full. He sees people picnicking, running
on the grass, and baseball coaches practicing. He stated he
has nothing against it, he just wants to see the need for it.
He said he’s not really worried about the lights but he is

Page 2 of 13 February 12, 2026




worried about space that is utilized by more than four people
on a court. He just feels like it needs to be in the right spot.

Ben Anderson said he has a different experience with
pickleball and people playing on the courts at Independence
Park. He stated that he's seen families set up their lawn
chairs and seen kids playing on the courts. Mr. Anderson said
he often goes in the afternoon with friends and they end up
sitting for long periods of time waiting for their turn to play.
He said it has been warm enough, with the weather, that he
- went up on an afternoon in December and the courts were
full. Mr. Anderson said he has seen families there socializing
and feels like pickleball is a social sport and even when you
are not playing, there are people there visiting. Mr. Anderson
said he doesn't know where they are considering putting the
courts and doesn’t know the concerns that others are talking
about, but wanted to give his experience as a counterpoint.
He said the courts are not going to be full all the time, that's
just how it is, but the grass does not have people on it all
the time either. He said there is a need for more courts.

Jolene Baker stated her concern about the lights at the park
and they shine in her bedroom window all year long. She
said once they go on they never go off. Ms. Baker said they
are there all season long. She said she was also opposed to
tearing up grass to replace with concrete.

Braden Olsen said he didnt want the pickleball courts to go
any further north on the grass. He also expressed a concern
about the parking and how full the parking lots are during
the summer. Mr. Olsen said he would like to see a map of
where they will be located and the impact to parking.

With no other comments from the public, Dan Olsen moved
to close the public comment period. Kenneth Reynolds
seconded the motion. The motion passed with all voting in
favor of the motion.

Mayor Arnold stated the Planning Commission has a couple
of vacancies on the Board and they've received a couple of
letters of interest for the positions. He stated he was going
to go alphabetically by last names to have the individuals
introduce themselves.

He asked Guy Collett if he would start with an introduction
and his interest in serving on the Planning Commission. Mr.
Collett said he is currently living in Naples City. He shared

Page 3 of 13 February 12, 2026

INTRODUCTION OF
APPLICANTS FOR
NAPLES PLANNING
COMMISSION




that he has served on the Planning Commission for the
County in the past. Mr. Collett said he is planning to build on
a parcel of land that is not in the City but while he does live
in the City he would like to have the opportunity to serve. He
stated he is a real estate agent and he wanted to help
Naples progress and take care of the residents. Councilman
Zilles stated that Mr. Collett will be running for one of the
County Commission seats and wondered if that would be a
conflict of interest. Mr. Collett said he didn't see it as such
and thought it could be a benefit because the City is part of
the County and they could work together. He said he works
with the American Legion and works with the Chamber of
Commerce as the public relations chair and didn't feel those
were a conflict. He said if he gets elected it would be up to
the County and Naples to see if he could continue to serve.
He said he feels like we need to improve our cohesiveness in
the County. Councilman Zilles said he appreciated that and
didn't mean anything by it. Mayor Arnold said the Planning
Commission is an advisory board and makes
recommendation to the City Council, who then makes the
decisions, and they would probably need to seek legal
council on that. Mayor Arnold said he sees the conflict as
minimal. Councilman Morton asked Mr. Collett what
difference he sees between a City and County Planning and
Zoning. Mr. Collett said he saw it with the assisted living
homes being allowed in residential neighborhoods in Vernal
and not allowed in the County, but then they came to see
that it made sense to have similar regulations. He said it
depends on what each entity’s goals are. Mayor Arnold
wanted to know if Mr. Collett had any scheduling conflicts in
regards to the night the Planning Commission holds their
meeting. Mr. Collett stated, not on that Thursday, but he
does volunteer a lot in the community. Mayor Arnold asked
what Mr. Collett’s thoughts were on the overlap of his
occupation as a real estate agent and serving on the
Planning Commission? He said there is value in his real
estate knowledge and how he would manage that line of
conflict of interest between making sure that he’s not
pushing for something that helps him sell something in the
bounds of Naples City. Mr. Collett said it is an advisory board
and he does feel like he has something to offer because of
his profession, but only in an advisory position. Mayor Arnold
thanked him for answering their questions.

Mayor Arnold asked Mason Holmes to introduce himself. Mr.

Holmes said he has lived in Vernal for 23 years and said he
is working in the electrical field and has been involved in

Page 4 of 13 February 12, 2026




construction most of his life. He said he received a degree in A P P R O V E

business management and just wanted to put himself out APPOINTMENTS TO
there and had a little more to learn. Mr. Holmes felt his NAPLES PLANNING
knowledge and his youthfulness might help direct some COMMISSION

things. He also said he knows a couple of the commission
members already and thought that would help. Councilman
Zilles asked what things he has noticed in the Naples area
that he would like to maybe discuss as a member of the
Planning Commission. Mr. Holmes said that we do live in a
rural town, but he does see the potential for growth and
would love the idea of a grocery store here and to be a part
of that. Mayor Arnold said they do talk about growth but
how do you deal with the mixed views on what people do
and don't want? He wanted to know how Mr. Holmes would
try and manage those conversations. Mr, Holmes said you do
need to do your own research and have those conversations
and find out what people want because the City has both
businesses and individuals they are serving. Councilman
Zilles asked Mr. Holmes if he had ever heard the term
“nimbyism?” He told him it stands for “not-in-my-backyard”
and there is that movement that, if it's going to go in my
backyard, then I don’t want it. Councilman Zilles asked him
what his thoughts were about that? Mr. Holmes said he’s
grown up raising cows and they had the opportunity to put
solar panels on family-owned property and they had some
say "not-in-my-backyard” but some saw the positive in it. He
went back to what he said before, weigh the pros and cons
of who it's going to benefit, who it's going to hurt, and to try
and find some middle ground. Mayor Arnold did point out
that Mr. Holmes is Micheal Davis’ son-in-law, but because the
Planning Commission does not report to the City Manager,
he didn't feel there was a conflict. Mayor Arnold said he
didnt have any problem with moving this forward.
Councilman Reynolds said he has worked with the Planning
Commission for years and didn't have any problem with
either of the individuals and would make the motion to
approve the appointments. Dan Olsen seconded the
motion. The motion passed with all voting aye. Mayor Arnold
said he would have Gwen Harrison get in touch with both of
them about the next meeting.

Cheryl Meier with the USSD#1 came before the Council A P P R O V E
regarding a proclamation supporting the AARP Network of PROCLAMATION
Age Friendly Communities. She said the proclamation is to SUPPORTING
help Uintah County become part of a community of active, PARTICIPATION IN THE
healthy, aging status. Ms. Meier said there is only one other AARP NETWORK OF AGE-
county in the State of Utah that participates with AARP to be F RIENUDTLY

Page 5 of 13 January 22, 2026




healthy aging designated. She said they are trying to show COMMUNITIES
some partnership and be able to apply for some grants with
AARP that will help with their senior programs at the
Recreation Center. Ms. Meier stated there is no monetary
commitment for the City attached to this, they are just
asking that in any planning or capital projects the City is
considering that they keep in mind the healthy aging
community for sidewalks, programs, etc. She said it is a
reminder, when they are making plans, to keep this group in
mind. Ms. Meier stated the first grant she would like to go
after would be to help pay for a personal trainer for the age
group they are talking about. Councilman Zilles asked about
the reporting requirements for Naples City, is that something
she would take care of? Ms. Meier stated the paperwork
would show Uintah County Healthy Active. Councilman Zilles
asked if the proclamation was just a supporting document?
Ms. Meier said it is. Councilman Zilles wanted to know if it's
restricted if any entities in the County didn’t pass a similar
document? Ms. Meier said if the City were to apply for a
grant on their own with AARP, the document would only help
them, it wouldn't hurt them. With no other questions, Nate
Zilles moved to approve the proclamation. Ross Morton
seconded the motion. The motion passed with all voting in
favor of the motion.

Before turning time over to Cheryl Meier, Mayor Arnold DISCUSSION REGARDING
stated that he recognizes that there are always two sides to PICKLEBALL COURTS AT
every issue. He asked Council to weigh those pros and cons NAPLES PARK

internally, ask questions, and then make a decision. He
asked them to keep an open mind. Mayor Arnold turned the
time over to Cheryl Meier for a discussion on pickleball courts
at the Naples Park. She showed a picture of the overlay of
the park and showed the original location of the courts near
the musical equipment. Ms. Meier explained that USSD #1
manages the parks for Uintah County, Ballard, Vernal, and
Naples City. She said there are many sports that people
participate in or watch and their goal is to provide recreation
for all. Ms. Meier shared that disc golf and pickleball are
huge right now. She explained they do have a very extensive
softball park project and it has started in Naples with the
lights on the two fields. Ms. Meier said she does have a large
grant that was applied for but she’s still waiting on it. She
referred again to the map and said when they first
engineered a place for the pickleball courts it was
determined that the best place was near the musical
instruments. She said that section of the park is watered
with culinary water and USSD #1 pays for that. Ms. Meier

Page 6 of 13 February 12, 2026




reminded everyone about the water situation in the area
and they have to determine where and what to water with
limited supply. She said the goal is to turf all of the ball fields
so they can get to a place where they can still play, if they
can't water anymore. Ms. Meier also mentioned the other
area that was discussed located between the two fields and
said they do have people who practice there and it does
have better turf. Ms. Meier discussed the lighting because
she knew that was an issue and showed a picture of the
placement of the lights and a sample of the lights. She
stated lighting is very different now days and they are
directional, LED, and zoned down. Ms. Meier had a picture
showing the radius of the lights and explained that the
numbers represent how far out the light shines and when
you get to a zero that means there is no light. Ms. Meier
stated the same light study had to be done when they
located the courts at Independence Park. Ms. Meier said
there could be the potential for twelve additional cars if
every court was being used and if each person brought their
own car. She stated that parking is an issue at any park but
didn't feel like twelve cars was justification for additional
parking. Mayor Arnold asked if she could address the
question of usage. Ms. Meier stated she tried to pull up the
camera information for the park but wasn't able to, she did
say the usage has been crazy. Mayor Arnold stated he’s had
a couple of people talk to him about what the Turner’s
vision of this park was. He read from the deed of the
property of when the Turner’s donated the property to
Naples City. He said he understands the Turner’s wanted to
keep it a park and that Naples City have a say in it. He said
the City has given over some of it to the Recreation SSD,
and they recognize them as the authority on the recreation.
He said there is nothing on the record as to what Naples City
can and can't put on there. He recognizes that it does create
a weird balance between the City and the Uintah SSD
because Cheryl has a job as the land manager to try and do
what she views as best when it comes to watering and when
it comes to all the different groups that want to use the park
and the comments she’s getting, and where does that
balance with Naples still maintaining a say in it, so we don't
have to give it back. Mayor Arnold stated that we live in a
small community and we're neighbors and it's not always
easy to stand up in front of people but he genuinely
appreciates that they took the time to come and share their
thoughts. Mayor Arnold stated their job, as a Council, was to
look at all of it, not just one activity above another, but to
create space and opportunity for everyone. Mayor Arnold

Page 7 of 13 February 12, 2026




shared his own personal opinion that they don't see as many
kids out on the grass and riding bikes, they do have those
that play sports, but not as many that are out playing. Mayor
Arnold shared his thoughts on the lighting issue and said
they do a much better job of being directional and shouldn’t
cause a lot of issues for surrounding areas. Mayor Arnold
said they don't want to take away anything from the baseball
and softball, they want to work on some things that allow
them to collaborate with those groups. Mayor Arnold asked
if the Council members had anything to add, for or against?

Councilman Morton also expressed his appreciation for those
that were willing to talk with him. He stated he was of the
opinion that if they can talk things out, they can get things
worked out. Councilman Morton said he has always loved
baseball and softball and wants to support those groups, so
when those in attendance brought their issues to a previous
meeting, he met with Becky Evans and told her they want to
support softball. Councilman Morton said when he met with
her they came up with some ideas that would help the
softball people and still allow them to have the pickleball. He
said he took the ideas to Cheryl and they talked about ways
they can help support the softball program. One of the
things they talked about were the batting cages on the west
end of the field and if they had those up then they wouldn’t
need a whole field for practice. He said they discussed some
improvements that could be made on the lower field to make
it better to practice on. Councilman Morton said he did talk
with Braden Olsen and found out they don't want to take
away what they call “practice cove” so they took that area
off the table. Councilman Morton said he spoke with Becky
about doing a pickleball tournament once a year where all
the proceeds go to girls softball. He said he didn't want them
to think he didn't listen and that he doesn't care about
softball, he wants it to be a successful program. Councilman
Morton said he did talk with Cheryl about lights and was
assured that the lights are directional and wouldn’t be a
bother to people. He said he does think this would be a good
thing for the community and while everyone doesn't get
exactly what they want, everybody can get what they need
through compromise. He said he appreciates the comments
and feedback and hopes that a lot of the concerns have been
answered and they can make both sides happy. Councilman
Morton shared that their family was always glad, if they
traveled with one of their children to a ball game, if they
pulled up and there were pickleball courts. He said it gave
the rest of the family something to do while the one child

Page 8 of 13 February 12, 2026




practiced or played. Councilman Morton also shared that new
bathrooms, a score tower, and concession stands were
coming as part of the improvements for softball. He said
they really do care about their program.

Councilman Olsen asked Cheryl if she had the square footage
of the pickleball courts. It was determined that it would be
a little less than half an acre. Councilman Olsen said the area
discussed is being used for fall football. Cheryl said they play
fall football everywhere and are in discussion about using the
old central cove area for additional practice or playing space.
Councilman Olsen also asked if there was any money
available to help pave the parking area next to Naples
Elementary? Cheryl wasn't sure, she said she could look
because they have a similar need at the Recreation Center.

Councilman Zilles asked if there had ever been any
discussion with the School District about the property west
of Naples School. He said that area is rarely used. Cheryl
stated the School District does things on their property for
their own needs and the USSD does not have any type of
agreement with the School District for use of their
properties. Councilman Zilles stated that he appreciated how
concerned Greg Olsen was regarding the use of the area and
Councilman Zilles said he understands it is predominately a
softball-oriented park. He said he also appreciated the
comments Greg made regarding the lights and how that
wasn't as big an issue for him. Councilman Zilles addressed
the concern of the drought that everyone is living through
right now and the ability of anyone to keep things green was
going to be limited. Councilman Zilles agreed that softball is
fun and pickleball is fun, he asked it there was any type of
focus group that was put together to decide where these
pickleball courts would be located? Cheryl stated they've
worked with an engineer and their parks and rec staff and
they are very aware of the land they manage, the area, the
grades, the water conditions, and the soil conditions. Cheryl
said they did not walk every inch of the park because they
know there are areas that would be a no. She said the far
east corner has some parking space but with the knowledge
they have, they know that is too far from a restroom. She
also noted that if the Recreation District is put on water
restrictions they would have to shut the splash park down
and they still want to be able to provide recreation
opportunities. Councilman Zilles recognized that this is a hot
topic and it's not going to be possible to make everyone
happy, but wondered if they got more minds to the table

Page 9 of 13 February 12, 2026




then maybe they could make more people happy. Cheryl said
they have looked at the areas discussed and they have spent
time trying to determine the best area for the location and
that is how they came back to the original site.

Councilman Reynolds said he doesn’t agree with the location
because there are undeveloped places in the park. He
understands that it is a drought year but it won't always be
that way so why take away what they've got. He said if they
went to the north west it would be near a parking area. He
said the parking near the pavilions is always being used.
Cheryl said they have looked at a lot of areas and the
consensus was that it was too far away from the park. Cheryl
said she understands that it's not always going to be a
drought, but Naples City does not pay the water bill, the
Recreation District does, and last June it was $16,000 for
Naples Park. Councilman Reynolds said it won't always be a
drought year. Cheryl said she understands that but the bill
for $16,000 was from last year and things are not changing
yet this year. Councilman Reynolds just didnt know why
they were taking away from what was already there, and
you can't get it back.

Councilman Zilles said he appreciated all the thought that
Cheryl has put into this and also the comments made by
Councilman Reynolds and just wondered if there needed to
be more community outreach. He said it is very difficult
because he understands there will be impact to everyone
around there or involved.

Councilman Morton said there has been a lot of discussion
involved in this already. He said they are also looking at a
time element if they want to be able to have the contractor
secured.

Ms. Meier recommended the Council walk the area and
discuss the locations. She stated the location they suggested
was best for the cost. She invited them to look at the areas
and the drainage of the areas.

Mayor Arnold stated the Council does need to make a
decision, for or against. He asked them to be willing to look
at the other side, whatever their opinion currently is, he
asked them to really be willing to try and understand each
side. He asked them to look at both sides and be prepared
to make a decision at their next meeting. He said they need
to move on.

Page 10 of 13 February 12, 2026




Councilman Olsen asked Ms. Meier what the issue was with
the area west of the splash park. Ms. Meier stated they
would have to lower the elevation so much that they will
offset the entire drainage of the park and it would be a large
dollar amount. Councilman Olsen said it was probably the
least utilized area of the park. Ms. Meier stated the City has
engineer capability and they could talk to people. She said if
money was no concept they’d put a pickleball court on every
corner. Ms. Meier said they are not out to destroy recreation
in Naples City Park, they are there to make it bigger and
better.

Mayor Arnold asked the Council to take the time to consider
both sides of the issue and be prepared to come back next
meeting to make a decision. Councilman Olsen wanted to
know what they were considering? Mayor Arnold said,
whether or not they are going to put them at the park. He
recommended that if Councilman Olsen was interested in a
certain area of the park then to get with Mike and see if it's

feasible.
Ryan Cook came before the Council to ask for approval to APPROVE PURCHASE OF
purchase a new crack seal machine. Ryan presented two bids CRACK SEAL MACHINE

for a new machine and presented those to the Council. Ryan
told the Council that crack sealing is the best bang for your
buck to extend the life of a road. He said their machine is
still running, but it is 20 years old. Ryan asked the Council to
allow him time to go out and look at one of the machines.
He said Vernal City owns one of the machines he received a
bid on and he’s been able to look at it but he wanted time to
travel to Salt Lake to look at the other one. He was asking
them to allow him a chance to look at the other machine and
then make a decision. Ryan said he feels like the machines
are selling quickly. Mayor Arnold asked what the benefits of
the more expensive machine are? Ryan said that crack seal
machine comes with all the bells and whistles, but that
sometimes means more things can go wrong. Ryan said he
really wanted to be able to check out the wand on the other
machine because of weight and ergonomics. Mayor Arnold
asked Ryan if he like the Holland machine. Ryan stated he
liked some of the safety features. Mayor Arnold asked him if
it was worth the additional $6,000. Ryan said he believes so.
Councilman Morton asked if it was a budgeted item and
where in the budget it would be coming from. Ryan said it
was and gave him the budget line item. Kenneth Reynolds
moved to allow Ryan to purchase the Holland machine.

Page 11 of 13 February 12, 2026




Nate Zilles seconded the motion. The motion passed with
the following roll call vote:

Jonathan Beede Aye
Kenneth Reynolds  Aye

Ross Morton Aye

Dan Olsen Aye

Nate Zilles Aye
Micheal Davis presented some changes to the purchasing DISCUSSION TO AMEND
policy for the City. He stated in the current policy anything NAPLES PURCHASING
above $500 came before City Council and the change would POLICY -ORDINANCE NO.
be that anything over $1,000 would be approved by the City 26-264

Manager and anything over $5,000 would be reviewed by
the City Council. Mayor Arnold stated that he asked Micheal
to update the policy and bring it before Council because
there seemed to be some confusion about whose approval
was needed. Micheal said they also changed the amounts on
what is required for bids. Jonathan Beede moved to
approve the amendments to the Naples City purchasing
policy. Councilman Zilles asked about the range listed in one
area and the amount listed in the other. Micheal said it
would be anything between $1,000 and $4,999. Councilman
Morton said the policy reads “purchases over” and maybe
that should be changed to “between.” Micheal said we can
do that. Jonathan Beede amended his motion to approve
the amendments to the policy with the change discussed.
Councilman Olsen stated the ordinance needed to be cleaned
up and brought back before they approved it. Jonathan
Beede amended the motion to table the adoption of the
ordinance and to make the changes with the direction given.
Micheal said this is the ordinance, he said this does make the
changes discussed. Micheal said they need to adopt the
ordinance to change the policy. Councilman Olsen said the
ordinance needs to be a clean copy without the corrections.
Dan Olsen seconded the motion. The motion was to
approve the discussed changes to the purchasing policy and
to bring back the Ordinance for approval. The motion passed
with all voting in favor.

Councilman Zilles wanted Council members to know of the OTHER MATTERS OR
upcoming GIB seminar sponsored by UBAG. He said there FUTURE COUNCIL
would be training for newly and existing elected officials and MATTERS

planning commission, engineering firms, or any staff are
invited that would like to come. He said it would be on April
1, 2026 from 3:00 to 8:00 p.m.

Page 12 of 13 February 12, 2026




Mayor Arnold had tickets for the upcoming Vernal Chamber
of Commerce Gala if anyone was interested in attending.

With no other business before the Council, Ross Morton MOTION TO ADJOURN
moved to adjourn the meeting. Jonathan Beede seconded
the motion. The motion passed with all voting aye.

APPROVED BY COUNCIL ON THE 26™ DAY OF FEBRUARY 2026

BY: ATTEST:

Page 13 of 13 February 12, 2026




CITY OF NAPLES

Payment Approval Report - by GL Account Naples
Report dates: 2/1/2026-2/28/2026

Page:

1

Feb 24, 2026 05:54PM

Report Criteria:

Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.

Only unpaid invoices included.

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice Number Invoice Date  Invoice Amount

10-22500 HEALTH INSURANCE 693 PEHP- Health Health Insurance Premium 740731 02/15/2026 22,700.15
10-22500 HEALTH INSURANCE 740 Public Employees Health Prog Life Insurance 0124187478 02/20/2026 384.08
Total : 23,084.23
10-41-610 MISCELLANEOUS EX 1210 Zion's First National Bank MD-Dept of Commerce- MBA 260223831887 02/23/2026 18.00
Total LEGISLATIVE: 18.00
10-43-250 VEHICLE MAINTENA 1210 Zion's First National Bank MD-Papas-Truck Wash 2427539DMS6 02/08/2026 29.00
Total CITY ADMINISTRATOR: 29.00
10-50-271 UTILITIES - CITY HAL 622 Mt. Olympus Waters Equipment Rental 102094540213 02/13/2026 95.93
Total GENERAL GOVERNMENT BUILDINGS: 95.93
10-54-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIPTI 1210 Zion's First National Bank PD-Nat'l Assoc of School Resourc 7396060 12/22/2025 50.00
10-54-210 BOOKS, SUBSCRIPTI 1210 Zion's First National Bank PD- NASRO- Membership W. Ash 78612 02/17/2026 50.00
10-54-230 TRAVEL & PER DIEM 1210 Zion's First National Bank PD- Hyatt Orlando- Hotel D.McDa 2694457 12/14/2025 727.20
10-54-230 TRAVEL & PER DIEM 1210 Zion's First National Bank PD- Fairfield Inn- Room /K9 Deco 72236 02/09/2026 153.84
10-54-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES & 902 Staples File Folders- Emp 7674881812 02/11/2026 36.58
10-54-240 OFFICE SUPPLIES & 1210 Zion's First National Bank OF-Malwarebytes- Anitvirus 267862496 01/26/2026 64.16
10-54-248 EQUIPMENT/PURCH 1210 Zion's First National Bank PD- MPG Detailing- Clean K9 Tru RV5Q 02/23/2026 150.00
10-54-251 FUEL & QIL 277 Dan's Tire Service Rotation 339684 01/30/2026 43.00
10-54-286 DUI ENFORCEMENT 1210 Zion's First National Bank PD- CDWG- Surfact Pro + Keybo ~ 1CJ7KX5-2 11/04/2025 250.32
10-54-330 EDUCATION AND TR 1210 Zion's First National Bank PD-NASRO- Training Course W. 1210-NASRO- 02/17/2026 500.00
10-54-330 EDUCATION AND TR 1210 Zion's First National Bank PD- Pilot Institute- Certification Co 1210-PIUAZDS  01/08/2026 170.05
10-54-330 EDUCATION AND TR 1210 Zion's First National Bank PD-Utah Chiefs- Registration N. S 394 01/13/2026 230.00
10-54-331 PUBLIC RELATIONS 389 Gunslinger Forger Coins & Patche PD Coins 020326 02/03/2026 600.00
10-54-333 CRIMINAL INVESTIG 1210 Zion's First National Bank PD- USPS- Ship Evidence V24-04 1ZCK695T039 02/18/2026 14.95
10-54-334 K-9 EXPENSES & EQ 627 Papa's Dino Express Dog washes 627-0226DW 02/09/2026 6.75
10-54-470 UNIFORM ALLOWAN 1210 Zion's First National Bank PD- Empire Active- 1 Set PT-C.A 1042685 02/19/2026 212.00




CITY OF NAPLES Payment Approval Report - by GL Account Naples Page: 2

Report dates: 2/1/2026-2/28/2026 Feb 24, 2026 05:54PM

GL Acct No Vendor Vendor Name Description Invoice Number Invoice Date Invoice Amount

10-54-470 UNIFORM ALLOWAN 1210 Zion's First National Bank PD-Empire Active- 1 Set PT M. Pu 1042686 02/19/2026 212.00
Total POLICE DEPARTMENT: 3,470.85
10-60-230 TRAVEL 1210 Zion's First National Bank S8S- Holiday Inn- Hotel 25431840 02/17/2026 246.95
10-60-245 BLDG SUPPLIES & 341 Fastenal Company First aid kit supplies, pain reliever ~ UTVER115713  02/11/2026 74,22
10-60-245 BLDG SUPPLIES & 655 Northeastern Utah Office Printers and ink 107286 02/10/2026 823.93
10-60-246 ROAD MAINTENANC 913 Sunrise Engineering, Inc. Dashboard street program manag ARIV1010088 02/09/2026 1,900.00
10-60-250 EQUIPMENT, MAINT 444 Intermountain Bobcat Bobcat & Chipper Repair W08438 02/23/2026 3,800.90
10-60-250 EQUIPMENT, MAINT 958 Main Street Auto 100 A Bat tester 322570 02/10/2026 33.99
10-60-250 EQUIPMENT, MAINT 958 Main Street Auto Bucket truck batteries 322577 02/10/2026 415.98
10-60-250 EQUIPMENT, MAINT 958 Main Street Auto Core Deposit refund 322766 02/11/2026 36.00-
10-60-250 EQUIPMENT, MAINT 958 Main Street Auto Anitfreeze 322881 02/12/2026 155.88
10-60-250 EQUIPMENT, MAINT 1177 Wheeler Machinery Co. Change switches on building pow  SS000603548 02/11/2026 894.89
10-60-258 PROFESSIONAL SER 486 Jones & DeMille Engineering 2500 S 1/31/26 0140271 02/19/2026 9,435.00
Total STREETS: 17,745.74
10-70-266 CITY BEAUTIFICATIO 1210 Zion's First National Bank S8-Amazon- 10' Christmas Tree 113-7523197-3  01/08/2026 68.59
Total BUILDING & GROUNDS: 68.59

Grand Totals: 44,512.34

Report Criteria:
Invoices with totals above $0.00 included.
Cnly unpaid invoices included.




NAPLES CITY
ORDINANCE NO 26-263

AN ORDINANCE OF NAPLES CITY ADOPTING THE 2006 UTAH WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE CODE, AS
ADOPTED UNDER UTAH CODE § 15A-2-103, REGULATING AND GOVERNING THE MITIGATION OF
HAZARDS TO LIFE AND PROPERTY FROM WILDLAND FIRE EXPOSURE IN THE URBAN-WILDLAND
INTERFACE AREAS OF NAPLES CITY; PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND COLLECTION
OF FEES THEREFOR; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, Utah Code Title 65A, Chapter 8, Part 2 requires counties and municipalities to adopt and enforce wildland-
urban interface building standards; and

WHEREAS, Utah Code § 15A-2-103 formally adopts the 2006 Utah Wildland-Urban Interface Code (“2006 Utah WUI
Code") for use by local jurisdictions as the governing construction and safety standard in designated WUT areas; and

WHEREAS, the Naples City Council finds that the adoption of the 2006 Utah WUI Code is necessary to protect life,
property, and infrastructure from wildland fire hazards; and

WHEREAS, this ordinance is adopted to fulfill the requirements of Utah Code Part 65A-8-2 and related provisions; and

WHEREAS, Naples City desires to adopt the 2006 Utah WUI Code as the enforceable standard for mitigation of
wildland fire risk within mapped wildland-urban interface areas of Naples City;

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of Naples City, Utah, ordains as follows:

SECTION 1. ADOPTION OF THE WILDLAND-URBAN INTERFACE CODE

The document designated as the 2006 Utah Wildland-Urban Interface Code, a copy of which is on file in the office of the
Naples City Recorder, as adopted under Utah Code § 15A-2-103, as published by the International Code Council and
amended by the State of Utah, be and is hereby adopted as the Wildland-Urban Interface Code of Naples City.

Said Code shall regulate and govern the mitigation of hazards to life and property from the intrusion of fire from wildland
exposures, fire from adjacent structures, and the prevention of structure fires from spreading to wildland fuels within
Naples City; providing for the issuance of permits and collection of fees therefore.

Each and all of the regulations, provisions, penalties, conditions, and terms of said Wildland-Urban Interface Code, on file
in the office of the Naples City Recorder, are hereby referred to, adopted, and made part hereof as if fully set out in this
ordinance.

SECTION 2. INSERTION INTO CITY CODE
Naples City Municipal Code Title 15.25.010 is hereby enacted and shall read as follows:

Title 15.25.010 - Wildland Urban Interface Code

A. The City adopts the 2006 Utah Wildland-Urban Interface Code, as adopted under Utah Code § 15A-2-103 together
with any amendments adopted by the State of Utah.

B. The jurisdiction name inserted into Section 101.1 of the Code shall be Naples City.

C. The Code shall apply to all designated wildland-urban interface areas as shown on the official Naples City WUI Map.



SECTION 3. SEVERABILITY

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or
invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. The City Council declares
that it would have passed this ordinance irrespective of any such invalid portion.

SECTION 4. EFFECT ON CURRENT RIGHTS
Nothing in this ordinance or in the Wildland-Urban Interface Code hereby adopted shall be construed to affect any

existing action or proceeding pending in any court, any rights acquired, or liabilities incurred, or any causes of action
acquired or existing under any act or ordinance previously adopted.

SECTION 5. PUBLICATION

The Naples City Recorder is hereby directed to publish this ordinance as required by Utah law.

SECTION 6. EFFECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shall take effect after passage and publication, or as otherwise provided by law.

SECTION 7. WUI MAP

Specific boundaries of natural or man-made wildland-urban interface areas shall be as shown on the Naples City WUI
Map, prepared using GIS tools in coordination with the Utah Division of Forestry, Fire, and State Lands.

The legal description of such areas is attached as Exhibit A.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED this 26th day of February, 2026

Mayor Brock Amold
ATTEST:

Nikki W. Kay, City Recorder

(SEAL)



Naples City WUI Map

Exhibit A




NAPLES CITY
ORDINANCE NO 26-264

AN ORDINANCE OF NAPLES CITY AMENDING ORDINANCE 10-121 ADOPTING THE PURCHASING POLICY
SETTING FORTH THE PROCEDURES GOVERNING PURCHASING GOODS AND SERVICES AND THE
PROCEDURES GOVERNING THE DISPOSAL OF CITY OWNED REAL AND PERSONAL PROPERTY.

WHEREAS, according to Utah Code 10-6-101, all purchases or encumbrances thereof by a city shall be made or incurred
according to the purchasing procedures established by each city by ordinance or resolution and only on an order or
approval of the person duly authorized to act as a purchasing agent for the city; and

WHEREAS, the Naples City Council has previously adopted Ordinance 10-121 setting forth those procedures by
adopting a purchasing policy; and

WHEREAS, the Naples City Council would like to amend certain provisions of Title 11 of the purchasing and disposal
ordinance by changing the amounts that can be approved by the purchasing agent and the process to be used in obtaining
bid price quotations.

NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of Naples City, Utah, ordains the following amendments:

D. PURCHASING AGENTS.

(1) The department heads or supervisors shall be the Purchasing Agent for their department; the City Manager or
designee may also act as the Purchasing Agent at any time. The department head may delegate the purchase of certain
supplies, services, or construction items to other City officials, if such delegation is deemed necessary for the effective
procurement of those items.

(2) Except as otherwise provided herein, the Purchasing Agent shall be responsible for the procurement of all supplies
and services in accordance with this Policy and within their department budget. All purchases between $1,000.00 and
$4,999.00 will be approved by the City Manager. All purchases of $5000.00 or more will be reviewed by the City
Council.

P. BIDS PRICE QUOTATION

(1) General. This Section defines minimal purchases and the rules governing them. These purchases may only be made
by department heads that have been authorized as stated in this title.

(2) The following dollar amounts shall be applied in determining the process to be used in obtaining bids price
quotation;

a. Up to $5000.00 Verbal quotation,

b. $5001.00 to $40,000.00 Written quotations, Council approval, three (3) bids preferred,
c. $40,001.00 and up, Council approval, sealed bids preferred.

SEVERABILITY
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or

invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. The City Council declares
that it would have passed this ordinance irrespective of any such invalid portion.

PUBLICATION



The Naples City Recorder is hereby directed to publish this ordinance as required by Utah law.

EFFECTIVE DATE

This ordinance shall take effect after passage and publication, or as otherwise provided by law.

PASSED, ADOPTED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED this 26th day of February, 2026

Mayor Brock Arnold
ATTEST:

Nikki W, Kay, City Recorder

(SEAL)



[tem No.____

MEMO TQ: Subject: The items listed have been removed from service and are
City Council, City Manager no longer in use. I respectfully request that they be processed and
FROM: made available for public surplus.

Ryan Cook

Street Supervisor VIKING-CIVES 41R12 PLOW

BOSS PLOW 9" POWER -V
CRACKPOT EX=POOR 200D

Recommendation: Date: FEBURARY 26, 2026
list these items on public auction site. (Public
Surplus)

Fiscal Impact: NA

Funding Source: NA

NOTES:

VIKING-CIVES 41R12 PLOW - TAKEN OUT OF USE 2024
BOSS PLOW 9° POWER -V - TAKEN OUT OF USE 2023
CRACKPOT EX=POOR 200D - TAKEN OUT OF USE 2026

We have an account with Public Surplus, and have used this site to surplus items for Naples City in the
Past.




2/24/26, 6:03 PM PXL_20260223_140816577.jpg

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/#inbox/F MfcgzQfCDKwJszwCSjDIgITHGFsMgzm?projector=1

SinaE T
o]

1M



2/24/26, 6:03 PM PXL_20260223 141116474.MPjpg

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/#inbox/FMfcgzQfCDKwJszwCSjDIgITHGFsMgzm?projector=1

7



THE FOUNDATION FOR

_&i Healthy Communities of Northeastern Utah

Healthy Communities Daggel‘l = Duchesne -+ Uintah

of Northeastern Utah B 7HCNEU.ORG -

Feb. 19, 2026
Naples City Council,

| am writing to you as the Director of the Foundation for Healthy Communities of
Northeastern Utah and offering my support of the proposed pickleball courts at Naples City
Park. I am pleased to hear of the potential opportunity to provide more variety in
opportunities for individuals to get out and get healthy.

Data shows 31% of adults in Utah are considered Obese. We know that obesity
increases an individuals’ risk of developing diseases such as: heart disease, diabetes and
cancer. Obesity costs the US healthcare system almost $173 billion a year. If we can
provide another way for more individuals to enjoy exercising, we would be helping
individuals decrease their risk of disease and help strengthen our community.

Data also shows that the youth in the U.S. are in a mental health crisis. Poor mental
health can also lead to poor physical health, an increased use of drugs, alcohol and tobacco
and suicide. Research also shows us that in addition to receiving treatment, engaging in
regular physical activity can also improve mental health.

If there is anything we could do to help more youth and adults exercise and improve
mental and physical health in our community [ believe we should do it. Especially when its
construction comes at no cost to the city.

To show my support of these courts [ am also willing to donate 100 pickleball
paddles to your community on the completion of construction. If you were to hold an
opening ceremony of some sort I could have local students there, who are participating in
the SWAT (Students Working Against Tobacco) program at the health department, handing
out paddles and educating the community on the benefits of being active and promoting
healthy lifestyles.

Thank you for your time and consideration,
Carnée #nnold
Executive Director, HCNEU

435-777-8150
director@hcneu.org

HCNEU is an equal opportunity provider, employer and lender

Promoting healthy communities by developing resources to protect and
improve the environment, promote health, and

435-777-8150 prevent disease. admin@hcneu.org



Pickleball Courts at Naples Park

Name

Chacly Anderen "
Ben Anderson

Asiban  Andecon
%\\r‘\f-ﬁ‘f Ardexon|
ylee Av\c\ewso-.;

Oliver Andersen ;

Elizabeth Francis

!

"1 Thomas ”:fﬂ IS

" Lbray Erandsco
Dele. Schues
o€ Seott
Elitaleih 05t
Jacol, Olsen
Mgt Olegn
Matrher i 0lsen
Poucpil Wb
F:/céwa:él S@hwc@iz




Pickleball Courts at Naples Park

Name Sianature l Age l Address

otson A
Athicus Seott |

Heﬂ\r\.) S CO‘H—"‘
|

(olless
WWM

((/{jww %/ Vi MM%
Pesyr &/cz;,w ’
Réﬁmt/\ Eml@@m

KX\ e Oloepn

j'cmgm Bw;‘ﬂ

o (Seede
rrzrof’ e

CZ \5/+tﬂ\ ﬁvtsu)r\

|z
2NN fown




Pickleball Courts at Naples Park

Name Signature Age | Address

MikKeela Wt on
CAT G Pl
iAWkt
Jaunia heeler
J{( /) Z’I *&/[\(7)7{ (%ﬂ
Sarah [%a Lor
Jordan B kKer
/!rls%ﬁﬁa&r‘—
Chrrs chardser
Parsley Richardsm|
Miriafl, Bk ondck
Waro. Gecion |
ﬁCWCU /4%& /@
D04 ¢ ; ;J’Mﬁf%,ﬁ
DMOMm AW eSO
CALel Awpetsod
DN Andorsin
Qcm,p)q Orrfeen
3 vroc £ Hvus!

{

\l == =

L~

-

-



Pickleball Courts at Naples Park

Name Signature Age | Address

H 270NN

Pw\,/'m A(ﬂafa{
( }g oo fenold
ey \&tSe)

Ad/n/)muu@n
Makons € Niglsy
Jezsica o |
Mavie talacs ‘1
Kir{sty oo |
B,
Bl QN\PA\GC\
IO
D vm@,oi'\ 4
Omﬂﬂnmﬂ/ﬂ Ma/bu{
&MM@ Iifheed]
(//Lfa ﬂl/&“fu(’cﬁi‘
L VBfrﬁ(/‘\ Lhe Ly
;5( oy Cf Kin 4
Mirsn  fota




Pickleball Courts at Naples Park

Name Si
P i — <
Y \ i
5 '{a’\\/\\-— \ﬁ;“\q\”yu\ k

Yang Hodana D)
~ M%di <
Ches lﬁlﬁtll[uj : ¢
Jennilee Semith
Naoimi S ma=n 7
S“efﬁnu\i ~y$i (€
Kv;ii%m%’:uda‘t K
ﬁﬁ-u\pm /Y1 < n"ZZ‘

f

{

NI M-d\,v\d
P Se |
> 2gh Adangs
Mo;km%lﬁo\a’mf ‘

E’_A MO sk, G
Aol JobfEot, ||

Tapihddghn ||
Wobeed bt {
DR aadasy
Ashied Lnha |
J




Pickleball Courts at Naples Park

Name
ARy fecheee
qﬂl i Al ;Py\emgvj
Noisn Meedn
Hen Merctan
Wes Meoneos
Limge) Bl bovee
‘Ck =\ Dc,K:Eq'
[Tein Rod@%/ﬁz |
{Xaul e Rede-3o

/ "7%/ f/rfiﬁ /44 'tfﬁ‘/;f &7
Loy Nelgsin
Nawy Nitlson
RadellLarar
Abri ) Osie¥
(utiet] 1P ¥
Qﬂ\&\xos hn
/_LM ](’,( (o eq |
Alics, Lacsen




Pickleball Courts at Naples Park

Name
(70?5/ éd(f |
Bfaﬂféq E/’g/‘
Sty JOope
Eqs-iop rZe,?c./
UQS’q 620170’
\f&&% prger 8
elsy THacke
V\e\%\c& Prdexay
fW” %f?/?ﬂ_/
S\’Mﬂmé Yo
i G,
'D/—\\I\D GAUL
vov by
Kevin Woodward
Q v, ney wondwars
W okiD €Y wao

Aljce Bumns

e

X

g@@hﬂﬂu Hall




Pickleball Courts at Naples Park

Name

Ente  [Haen

Jede Clowés/

Wv\\ £ Mo\v‘rw\e'l

L“.DCO{/D (halt

Mfmq ')uwu\cc'

Heit i Morte (-

Qr%c r Mﬂf’*on

R ©SS5 Mortua

aven MANIS

e (Ot

D rvnleonl

Dade lledt

N J
Save Cofletk

Cc?u rsen Coilenim

Q\\D\&&\ ‘r) ey

(W/ﬂ‘?ﬂ

"’),.._ 4
ﬁ Nrance

;\ 1.“‘\5\4 %

Q_‘; AN 1541




Pickleball Courts at Naples Park

Name

Claha

W

Wxgy

Brende Lloan

1




00'000°86€ S 1502 123r04d 1V.LOL
00°000°00T S Y101 SIDIAYIS TYNOISSIH0Hd
- S %0 AJNIDNILNOD SIIIAHIS TYNOISSIH0Ud
00°000'00T S W10149nS
00°000°0T S 153 %00 skaamg S
00°000°ST S 153 %00 Fup{EIg uoyOLSUo ) v
00'000°0€ S s1 %S'L S$32IAJ3S UONONIISUO) Fuaaulsuy £
™ S s Sl %00 SunenodaN g Suippig 4
00°000°St S / /51 %E Tl udisag Buusauiduy 1
VA S1VIN3AIDNI
£€'8/1°867 3 V101 NQILINYLSNOD
£8'768'8¢E S %51 ADNIONIINGDY A1/ 7~
05587657 3 V101 YV, P
05'586'5Z¢ $ v10149ns Y
00°'0059T S| o0ss S =h| oog *© TN 2dA} J21In9 pue gIn) 33a12U0) SE0L9LLT 9
00°000°0T S | 00°000°0T S Sl T SN N Suideaspuen S
000007 s | oooot 3 |es 0z : y Buiduis/iuied Supyie JuawaAed 050459420 ¥
05°S86' PP S| oser S pA bs £EE'E N / . WA L p YIUI Z/T - VIANH £
0000522 S| 00se S pA nd 006 . . apeidgng 01 1N) / UojIeABIX] 4
00°000°0€ S | 000S S pA na 009 ‘s 951n0) Iseg pajeanun 020412420 1
IdVYISANY1 R 101 ONINYYd
00°00€ €€ $ 1v1018ns
00°005T $ | 00005'T $ ST T N7, |oa3u0) dyjel) SO0LYSSTO 9
00°005T S | 0000S°T S S1 T ¥/ /7191au0) uoIs013/dddMS S
00°008 s| ooz S 41 oov vy J 3aua4 J|iIs 4
00°000°2 s | oo'00s S HH v uoeBISAAU] 9J8pINSGNS €
00°00S s | oooos S| uonesogort 1 Buuaiem pueiaiuo) 1sng 0Z0/74ST0 T
00'000'5¢ S | 000005 S Sl T toneziigoy OTOLTOSTO 1
NOILINYLISNOD TYHINID
INNOWY 3D14d LINN LINN ALD "153 NOILdI¥IS3a *ON W3Ll "ON
sd Al ss|deN

970¢ ‘9¢ Menigad

wod Bus-asuuns | D6067CYSER Xvd | ¥9E4°682 SEp TAL
820¥8 UBIN ‘[EWIBA ‘TOT AUNS 15 VIR 1503 £9€

1502 319v40Hd 10 NOINIdO S, 433NIDN3

saur] auoydaja] Suidas) - 307 Supjied Al sajdeN

ISIINNS




00'000'ESY S 1502 133r0¥d V101
00°000°00T S TVLOL S3IIAY3S TYNOISSII0Hd
= S %0 AJNIDNILNOD SIDIAYIAS TYNOISSII0Yd
00'000°00T 3 1vL0L18ns
00°000°0T S |- S 153 %00 shaaing g
00°000°ST S |- S 153 %00 SUDjRlS TONINNSTIO ) 14
DD.DOGQOM m m S1 %99 SadlAIag uonanJisuo) mctww:_wcu 1
- sVY¥/// » S1 %00 Funepnoday 1 Suippig z
00'000°SY $ | 00'00p"Sy S S1 %66 udisag Bupsauiduy I
~&// /1, STYLNIQIINI
05°ZESZSE $ “/[I¥10LNOLLINYISNGD
05°Z86'St $ %ST ADNAONIANOD
00°055°90¢€ $ wiol"L /S )
00°0SZ'ELT $ 1vioLlans -/
00°005°9T s | oo'ss S 91 TN 2dA L Jonng pue qin) 21219u0) SE0L9LLE L
00°00S'y s | oost 3 11 npuoc)
00°000°0T s | ooooo‘or S v3 JSWIojsuel]
00°005°0T s | oose S 41 liyreg g Suiyouail
00°000°ST $ [ 00'000°s S v3 |eroway aur/sjod auoydaja)
00°0000T S | 00°000°0T S Sl duideaspue S
000002 S| 0000t ¢ |28 Buiduis/iuied Bunyep Juawaned 080458420 ¥
00'052'Z5T S| oser $ pAbs " PIYL b YU Z/T - VINH 3
00'005°2Z s| oo'se S pA na / /4 9pesdgns 01in)/uoneaeoxi [4
00000708 <l 0oos 3 pAna 7 (., as5ino) aseq pajeanun 0Z0LTZLEZ0 T
JdVYISANY1 8 101 ONINYVd
00°0DEEE S 1vL0l8ns “
000052 $ | 000052 $ 51 1 "V / / r jonuodayell S00LYSSTO 9
000052 $ | 0000sT $ Sl T |003U0).UDI5043/ddd MS S
00'008 $|ooz S 41 00t “J /7 @ouajaps 14
00°000°2 $ | oo-oos S HH [ uolednsant| adepunsqns 3
00°005 $ | 00°00% $ | uojed poot 1 Buuaiep pue joiuo) 1sng 020£2LST0 4
00'000°S¢ $| 00°000°sZ S S1 T uonezi|igon 0TOLTOSIO T
NOILINYLSNOD TVHINID
LINNOWY 3D14d LINN LINN ALD "153 NOILdI¥IS3Ia "ON AL ‘ON
sa Ao sajden
970z ‘9z Aeniga4 saur] auoydaja] Suinoway - 307 Sunjied A sejden
150D 319v904d 40 NOINIJO S, H3ANIDNI
NS | 0B06'ZZY GER N4 | FOEL GRLGEY TAL
BLOPE YBIN A ‘TOZ 2UNS 15 UIRIA 158T £9€ mm_N— ZDm




(e

-

.

74 STANDARD PARKING STALLS
PROVIDED

STALL SIZE: 10" x 20

24" WIDE TWO—-WAY TRAFFIC AISLE
PROVIDED.

SMALLER AREA PROVIDED FOR
LANDSCAPING AND UTILITY
CLEARANCE AROUND EXISTING
POWER POLES.

TEV G COURENT [

SUNRISE
_mzm.wz_mmazm

NAPLES PARKING LOT EXHIBIT

S NG, | DESGNED | OFAWN | GHECRED | SHEET NG
| os | s | &= 1

5, 2026 11;08am Da

a—Forking—Eshail 1.dwg Feb

g \Desklop\Hople:

Enginow

"\Dnelrive — Sunrise

C:\Users\Davls sy



Petition to the Naples City Council Regarding Proposed Pickleball Courts at Naples
City Park

To the Members of the Naples City Council.

We, the undersigned residents and community members, respectfully request that the Naples
City Council vote not to approve the construction of pickleball courts on the east side of Naples
City Park along 1900 South between 1800 East and 2000 East.

Our request is based on the following important considerations:

1. Original Donation Conditions of the Park Land

The land for Naples City Park was generously donated under specific conditions, including that
no lighting would be installed in order to preserve the area’s dark skies. Adding pickleball courts
would likely necessitate court lighting for safe and practical use, directly conflicting with the
original intent and agreement under which the land was donated. Respecting donor intent is
essential to maintaining trust and integrity within our community.

2. Preservation of Dark Skies

Our community values the preservation of dark skies. Artificial lighting associated with
pickleball courts would introduce light pollution, affecting nearby residents and diminishing the
natural nighttime environment that has long been protected and appreciated in this area.

3. Local Resident Input and Neighborhood Impact

The original understanding surrounding park usage emphasized that the needs and preferences of
immediate neighboring residents should guide development decisions. Pickleball courts generate
consistent and often high noise levels due to paddle impacts and concentrated play. This would
significantly alter the character of the park and surrounding neighborhood, affecting residents’
quality of life.

4, Importance of Open Space for Unstructured Play

Open green space for unstructured recreation is vital—especially for children. Research
consistently supports that free, imaginative play in open environments benefits children’s mental
health, creativity, social development, and emotional well-being. Converting open park land into
structured courts reduces flexible play areas that serve families in diverse and meaningful ways.

For these reasons, we strongly ask the Naples City Council to preserve the east side of Naples
City Park as open, unstructured green space and to honor the original conditions and community
values associated with the park’s establishment.

We appreciate your thoughtful consideration of this matter and your continued service to our
community.



Name

Signature

Address

Linda Sovior

Elaine Wood,
SeorLint=

Even Du ko
(@T/V@/ 5&\/@4/5

7@14 noldie Butler
6)

T(;\q\s e \’\C\\'L\/\
/%ﬁm 4 wa

(@%%}if

—_— " " 1
lyrixye H'onfrlan

Bre-{ S’}}’MT Lan
D oese

WM_S_HMQE_/I

Denice %eraham |




Name

Signature

Address

Goy Lipun Hakch |

Gigmol Alley ettt

\/@n ¢ @&4/ @rids

_7/{"[2 él“*fl—/:f’

{V\\‘Ju\(a H\J ber
Shﬂlrlu/ Kiniloloe

Dewwis <§f€u€u g

L. Mich elleSteve,

Wade L Oxﬁé
Lincoln Woodward
]de\i Bakex
Evan Bakey

Holly Baker

DDMNQ/me”""/

-

@%Q\Dwﬁﬂ\ R\‘JM’»(E '

A agri=z, Cef” FE0O7 |




Name

ol N
Dern A Bak£7.

Tl M. Babor

Cl
Toyer Koyven

Nt 5 Mgﬁ
(i 0 &
Daﬂcy/ﬁ{fé’/@







MILY PA
AV
1L

i} - 7
= i
';

J{ L.
A
o







NAPLES PARK ~ ‘ EXISTING

| .w PICKLEBALL COURTS ﬁ:;:_‘ CONDITIONS
| === . T hema

NAPLES PARK
PICKLEBALL COURTS
1803 1906 5 57 £1501
NAPLES, UTAH ——————

CONCEPTA

|
|
|
|

e e



UTAH PROJECT PORTAL @ D) Projects Entities Resources About e

Naples

Presiding Officer: Budget: Population: Priorities:
Brock Arnold 2,350 1. --
Entity Phone: Entity Email:
435-789-9090 mayor@naples.utah.gov.

Projects - Add New Project

Short-Term (1 Year)

Project Sub-
Project Name County Project Status  Priority Project Type T;ZJ:C n Total Cost  Og
Napl ity-2 i
ples City-2500 ’ Roads & Sidewalks &
S Street Uintah Not Started 1 ) ADA $3,228,000
Transportation
Improvements Improvements

Medium-Term (2-5 Years) . —

Project Sub-
Project Name County Project Status  Priority Project Type T;?:G “ Total Cost O
Naples City -2000
# 4 , Roads & ,
E Street Uintah Not Started 1 ) Trails $1,500,000
Transportation

Improvements

Long-Term (5+ Years)

No projecits.



Completed

Project Name

Naples City - Storm Water
Preservation, Road Crossings &
Road Safety Project

Naples City - Master Plan
Update

Naples City - Storm Water
Preservation, Road Crossings &
Road Safety Project

County

Uintah

Uintah

Uintah

Project Type

Stormwater &
Drainage

Planning &
Studies

Stormwater &
Drainage

Project Sub-Type

Storm Drain
System

General Plan

Storm Drain
System

Presented by: State of Utah

Total Cost  Options

$1,700,000

$80,000

$2,545,000




